
 

Page 1 of 236 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JANUARY 07, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of December 17, 2018. 

Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the City’s FY19 Budget. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 18, 2018) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City’s FY19 Budget. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of 
property located to the north of Arbors Drive and west of Richard Road. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 27, 2018) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

5. Pass an Ordinance amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located to the north of Arbors Drive and west of Richard Road from A-1, Agricultural District, and 
placing the same in R-1, Residence District, upon its first consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Brooke Croshier-
Sidebotham to the Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2019. 

7. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of December 17, 2018 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Recognition of Art & Culture Board member Joni Krejchi.  
b) Greenhill Road Traffic Study update. 

1



 

Page 2 of 236 

c) Middle Cedar Watershed Plan update. 
d) Bills & Payroll. 

8. Adopt the Greenhill Road Corridor Traffic Study. 

9. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of November 2018. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
e) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & outdoor service - 
new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of an Advertising Agreement with Lee 
Enterprises, Incorporated, d/b/a Courier Communications, relative to recruitment advertising. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Independent Contractor Agreement for 
Massage Therapy Services with Ashley Kay Parcel. 

13. Resolution approving the concept of potential improvements to Pettersen Plaza, as recommended by 
the Parks & Recreation Commission. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of lockers, counters, 
shelves and related equipment from Midwest Storage Solutions, Inc. for the Public Safety Facility. 

15. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Benton's Sand & 
Gravel, Inc. for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project.  

16. Resolution approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment 
Project, Zone 9. 

17. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Feldman Concrete for 
the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 

18. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Feldman Concrete for 
the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement, and approving 
and accepting an Owner's Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, in conjunction with the 
West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Confluence, Inc. relative to the Gibson Property Master Planning Project. 

21. Resolution authorizing advancement of costs for an Urban Renewal project and certification of 
expenses incurred by the City for payment under Iowa Code Section 403.19 relative to the South 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area. 

22. Resolution setting January 21, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY2019-FY2024 
Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

23. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting January 21, 2019 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Place to Play Playground 
Project. 

2



 

Page 3 of 236 

24. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting January 21, 2019 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Street Construction 
Project. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

25. Allow Bills and Payroll of January 7, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Executive Session 

26. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 17, 2018 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52120 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of December 3, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown recognized City Clerk Danielsen for her 30 years of service with the 
City.  
 
Human Rights Commission member Andrew Morse presented highlights of the 
Annual Report of the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission. 

 
52121 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

6, 2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan. It 
was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52122 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II 
Graham provided a brief explanation and responded to comments by Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed Amendment, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
52123 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,367, 

determining an area of the City to be a blighted area, and that the rehabilitation, 
conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of such 
area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 
residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal 
projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development 
Area Urban Renewal Plan, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember 
deBuhr and response by Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Nay: deBuhr. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,367 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52124 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

4



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

6, 2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52125 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II 
Graham provided a brief explanation. Bruce Baridon, 6337 Viking Road, Nathan 
Nebbe, 2027 South Union Road, and Michael Hager, 6830 Viking Road 
commented and expressed concerns for property owners. Greater Cedar Valley 
Alliance and Chamber representative Lisa Skubal commended city leaders for 
being good managers of the growth of the Industrial Park. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed Amendment, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52126 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,368, 

determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that 
the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination 
thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or 
welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for 
urban renewal projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan, be adopted. Following 
questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Blanford, Wieland and Miller and 
responses by Planner II Graham, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,368 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52127 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the reappointment of 
Roger White to the Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, term ending 
12/31/2024. 

  
 Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 

certified lists for the following positions:  
 a) Administrative Assistant.  
 b) Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator I. 
  
 Receive and file the FY18 Annual Report of the Cedar Falls Human Rights 

Commission. 
 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal.  

b) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor 
renewal.  

5



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 c) Beck's Taproom Grill & Deringer's Public Parlor (a/k/a Lark Brewing, f/k/a 
Noble Oak), 314 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  

 d) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 
change in ownership.  
e) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
change in ownership. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52128 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green to receive and file the City 

Council Goal Setting Report of November 14, 2018 and November 15, 2018. 
Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by 
Councilmember Blanford, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
52129 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,369, approving and adopting revised job classifications, in 
conjunction with the City’s pay plan study. 
 
Resolution #21,370, approving and authorizing execution of three leases relative 
to property vacated by the 2008 flood buyout programs. 
 
Resolution #21,371, approving and authorizing execution of an Informal Project 
Contract for Demolition with Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc., in conjunction with the 
Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 
 
Resolution #21,372, setting January 7, 2019 as the date of public hearing on 
amendments to the City's FY19 Budget. 
 
Resolution #21,373, setting January 7, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of 
property located to the north of Arbors Drive and west of Richard Road. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,369 through #21,373 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52130 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,374, 

approving and adopting the recommendation of the Parks & Recreation 
Commission relative to a Recreation Fee Schedule to become effective April 30, 
2019, be adopted.  

 
    It was then moved by Green that the original motion be amended to include staff 

discounted Wellness rates.  The motion to amend failed due to lack of a second. 
 

The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 

6



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,374 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52131 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,375, 

approving and authorizing placement of a sculpture near the main entrance to 
City Hall, as requested by the Cedar Falls Public Art Committee of the Art & 
Culture Board, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Green and 
response by Municipal Operations and Programs Director Ripplinger, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,375 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52132 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,376, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Resource Enhancement and Protection 
(REAP) Grant Agreement-Development with the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources relative to the Clay Street Park Water Quality Improvement Project, 
be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Miller and response by 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,376 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52133 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,377, 

establishing the 2019 pay for City of Cedar Falls elected officials, in compliance 
with the City's Code of Ordinances, be adopted. Following comments by Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and responses by Councilmembers Miller and deBuhr, 
and Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,377 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52134 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,378, 

approving and adopting the FY20 City Council Goals & Objectives, be adopted. 
Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by 
Councilmember Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,378 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52135 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,379, 

approving and authorizing execution of five Owner Purchase Agreements and 
four Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting two Public 
Utility Easements and five Owner's Temporary Grading Easements, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 

7



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,379 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52136 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,380, 

approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 1416 Clay Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program, be adopted. Following comments by Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street, and responses by Councilmembers Blanford and Green, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,380 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52137 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,381, 

approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 821 College Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program, and Resolution #21,382, approving and 
accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located at 
1616 Olive Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolutions #21,381 and #21,382 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52138 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,383, 

approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to 2019 Engineering Services, be adopted. 
Following questions and comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and 
Councilmembers Miller and Blanford, and responses by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,383 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52139 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Wieland that the bills and payroll of 

December 17, 2018 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52140 - Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a question by 

Councilmember Blanford regarding single family owner conversion forgivable 
loan amounts. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson presented preliminary numbers for Police 

and Fire responses and indicated that final year-end statistics would be reported 
in January. 

8



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 
 Director Olson also commended public safety personnel for their fundraising 

efforts resulting in a recent donation of $3,900 to the Beyond Pink TEAM.  
 
52141 -  Councilmembers Darrah, Blanford and Green, and University of Northern Iowa 

Student Liaison Madden responded to comments and questions by Dr. Jim 
Young and Jack Yates, 519 Chateau Court, regarding climate change and the 
City’s plan for sustainability.  

 
     Mike Butler, 1022 Washington Street, commented that all city council documents 

are available to the public online and expressed appreciation for rental 
residences being returned to single family homes. 

 
     Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, commented on the proposed Greenhill 

Road project and submitted a letter on behalf of her neighborhood. 
 
     Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, expressed his opposition to the costs and use of 

roundabouts and their effects on corridor travel. 
 
52142 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:09 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

9



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: December 27, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2019 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the certification resolution for the FY19 budget amendment.  This 
budget amendment is necessary due to the timing of various projects.   As the notice 
shows cash reserves will offset these expenditures. 
 
Also attached you will find the line item amendments.  If you have questions regarding the 
amendment or budget process, please feel free to contact Jennifer or myself. 

 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

10



11



12



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: January 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request – Prairie West II 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone a property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Single Family Residential 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms, Owner; CGA Inc., Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

40.62 acres at the North end of Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard 
Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a request to rezone 40.62 acres of land off of the North end of 
Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard Road from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential. The 
area being rezoned consists of two different parcels of land, see areas outlined in red in the map 
below. The rezoning will allow for the development of single family homes similar to the 
neighboring subdivisions of the Prairie West and Prairie Winds developments.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned agricultural since 
the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
The land is surrounded by R-1, Single Unit 
Residential zoning to the South and East and MU, 
Mixed Use Residential District to the Northeast. 
The owner wishes to rezone the land for future 
residential development. The other half of the 
northern parcel was rezoned to MU in July of 
2016. The rezoning of these properties must be 
carefully considered by evaluating the 
characteristics of the land and surrounding 
properties. This staff report will outline a number 
of these elements in order to have a firm 
understanding of the future use of this property. 
 

13



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development when municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the land is ripe for development according to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Before land can be developed it must be zoned appropriately, which will 
then allow for platting, as necessary, and construction.  
 
As previously mentioned, this 40.62 acre property is surrounded by residential zoning. Aldrich 
Elementary School is being constructed directly to the south. The property to the north is zoned 
for a future mixed use development and to the east is the Prairie West 7th Addition residential 
subdivision. The land to the west is zoned A-1, Agricultural, and consists of farmland and the 
floodplain along Dry Run Creek.  
 
Zoning considerations involve evaluation of the following four criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this and the surrounding properties as Low Density 
Residential and Greenways/Floodplain. Low density residential emphasizes single family 
detached development. Typical densities range from 1 to 4 units per acre. The requested 
R-1 Zoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Map. Development of the property will 
provide additional residential housing in proximity to the new elementary school.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2) Are areas of this site in the Floodplain? Are there 

environmental sensitive areas that need to be 
protected? 
As both of these lots have been farmed the 
topography of the land is relatively flat. Both 
properties border the floodplain boundary (see 
image to the right). The floodway is indicated by 
red hashing, the blue shaded area represents the 
boundaries of the 100 year flood plain, and the 
orange shaded area represents the boundaries of 
the 500 year flood plain. The properties subject to 

Future Land Use Map with Categories 

14



this rezoning do not fall within the floodplain. There does not appear to be any 
environmentally sensitive areas on these sites that need to be protected. This will be 
confirmed when the land is subdivided for development. If any sensitive areas are found 
during the required environmental assessment they will be protected.  
 

3) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer and water services?  
These developments, as well as any development in the city will be provided with full 
municipal services. Sanitary sewer and water are readily available to the site.  
Connections to sanitary sewer and water service are available from Arbors Drive to the 
South and Richard Road to the East. There will also be future connections to Greenhill 
Road to the north as development continues in this area. In order to further develop the 
land to the west of the proposed site, the necessary infrastructure (i.e. sanitary sewer and 
water) will need to be extended to the western boundaries of this site. 
 

4) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
Development of the property under R-1 Zoning will be possible by extending Arbors Drive 
from the south, which will also extend north as part of the West Village Subdivision to 
provide a street connection to Greenhill Road. Richard Road will be extended west to 
provide access to a future subdivision from the east. Any future subdivision will need to 
provide a pattern of streets that connects with the existing street network in this part of 
the community.   

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposal 
and have no comments that need to be addressed on the proposed item.  

 
The rezoning of this property would allow for the continued development of residential lots. A 
notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on November 20, 2018 regarding this 
rezoning request.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction and 
Public Hearing 
11/28/2018 

Chair Oberle opened the public hearing and Mr. Wingert noted that he will be abstaining 
from this item. Ms. Lehmann provided background information on the request. She noted 
that all criteria with regard to future land use map consistency, protection of environmentally 
sensitive areas, access to needed municipal services, and adequate street connection to the 
site, have been met.  Staff recommended approval of the request. Ms. Oberle asked if there 
were any comments from the public. There were none. The Commission agreed that the 
request was fairly straight forward. Ms. Lehmann noted that if the Commission felt it was 
appropriate they could forward the request on to City Council without reviewing it again at 
the next Commission meeting. The Commissioners discussed the possibility and agreed 
that reviewing the request a second time was not needed. 
  
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Leeper, 
Oberle, and Saul), 1 abstention (Wingert) and 0 nays. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning & Zoning Commission and the Community Development Department recommend 
approving this rezoning request. 
 
Attachments: Location Map, Rezoning Exhibit, Letter of Intent  

15



Dry
Run

Creek

(SW)

Aldrich
Elementary

School
Arbors Dr

Richard Rd

Flynn Dr

Reese Rd

Vera Way

Ironwood Dr

Ed
en

 W
ay

Leigh Ln

Do
na

ld
D r

Ashworth Dr

Blythe Blvd

Andy Ave

Erik Rd

HorseshoeDr

Vera Way (Planned)

Co
he

nC
t(P

lan
ne

d)

Greenhill Rd

University Ave

R-1

R-1

C-2R-4 C-1

RP R-3

A-1

MU

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 28, 2018

Rezone 40.62 acres from A-1 to R-1
Panther Farms, LLC

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra iriePkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rs e
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

16



17



 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

16 East Main Street ● Marshalltown, Iowa  50158 ● Telephone 641-752-6701 ● Fax 641-752-2849 
Toll Free 800-542-7981 ● www.cgaconsultants.com 

 

October 18, 2018 
 
Planning Department 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
 

RE: Prairie West 2 Subdivision Rezoning 

 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of Panther Farms, LLC, we would like to submit a rezoning application for parcel 
8914-27-226-002 and part of 8914-22-478-004 as indicated on the rezoning exhibit. This land 
will be used as the next phase of the Prairie West subdivision and consist of a number of single-
family homes to be built at a later date.  
 
At this time the application is only to rezone the property to R1 from A1 and does not include 
platting or other planning efforts.   
 
Please contact me at 641-752-6701, or stroskey@cgaconsultants.com if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

 
Stephen Troskey       
Planner - Project Manager 

18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107, 

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY 

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) 

ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 

SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE 

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE. 

 

 

  WHEREAS, the applicant, Panther Farms LLC, has requested a rezoning of 40.62 acres of 

land located at the north end of Arbors Drive and the west end of Richard Road in Cedar Falls, 

Iowa from A-1(Agricultural) to R-1 (Residence); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is designated for future 

Low Density Residential and Greenways/Floodplain; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

has recommended approval to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to amend said 

Ordinance by removing the following described real estate from A-1, Agricultural District, and 

placing the same in the  R-1, Residence District, as follows: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 

WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, 

IOWA. 

 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 

OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27 TO 

19



THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, 

NORTHEASTERLY 290.97' ALONG THE ARC OF A 500.00' RADIUS CURVE, 

CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N66°54'44"E 

AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 286.88'; THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; THENCE, 

S0°11'02"E 339.85'; THENCE, N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, S0°00'14"W 1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 

RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

   

WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

 

Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 

WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, 

IOWA. 

 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27 TO THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, 

N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, NORTHEASTERLY 

290.97' ALONG THE ARC OF A 500.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE 

20



SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N66°54'44"E AND A CHORD 

DISTANCE OF 286.88'; THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; THENCE, S0°11'02"E 339.85'; 

THENCE, N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, 

S0°00'14"W 1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF 

RECORD, IF ANY 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1, Agricultural District and added to the R-1, 

Residence District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in R-1, 

Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby 

re-enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 

include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

INTRODUCED: __________________________________________ 

 

PASSED 1
ST

 CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 

 

PASSED 2
ND

 CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 

 

PASSED 3
RD

 CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 

 

ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

21



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: December 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham Visitors & Tourism Board (fills vacancy) 07/01/2019 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

22



23



24



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

December 17, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:15 p.m. on December 
17, 2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.  Staff members attended from all City Departments. Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier, Joni Krejchi  Art & Culture Board member,  Mark Perington from 
Snyder & Associates, Larry Weber from University of Iowa  Hydroscience and 
Engineering Department and Pat Conrad from Emmons and Olivier Resources and 
other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Recognition of Art & Culture Board member Joni Krejchi.  Mayor Brown thanked Ms. 
Krejchi for serving on the Art and Culture Board for nine years.  He presented her with a 
plaque.   

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda Greenhill Road Traffic Study 
Update.  Jon Resler City Engineer stated an RFP process was completed and Snyder 
and Associates was awarded the contract in May 2018, to perform a study of the entire 
corridor from Hudson Road to Cedar Heights Drive.  He stated they held public 
information meetings on June 12, August 9 and November 1.  Mr. Resler Introduced 
Mark Perington from Snyder and Associates.  Mr. Perington reviewed each intersection 
along the corridor.  He stated they evaluated each intersection for current and future 
needs; including turning lanes, intersection improvements during peak and nonpeak 
times, cost impact and pedestrian/bicycle accommodations.  Mr. Perington stated they 
looked at the intersections with a signal and a roundabout and how each option would 
improve the intersection.  He was happy with the public input meetings and the positive 
comments they received, especially towards roundabouts. He explained they looked at 
traffic and accident data.  He proceeded to review each intersection which included a 
graphic for the additional right of way and lane modifications.   

Mayor Brown opened it up for Council discussion.  Council voiced concerns over the 
extended median at South Main and Balboa causing a right in right out for those 
residents.  They asked the consultant to review if the extended median was necessary 
and to see if there was another option.  Mr. Resler said the sound barrier fence is being 
looked at in the Capital Improvement Plan, to be either restored or replaced.  Mayor 
Brown opened it up for public comment.  Penny Popp, 4805 S. Main Street, stated the 
residents seem to be split 50/50 on a roundabout or signal at S. Main Street.  She also 
listed some other concerns; the sound barrier fence needs to be replaced not restored 
and the right in right out at Balboa is a big concern for residents taking them out of their 
way to go north.  She wants the best options to be investigated for the residents and 
she hopes staff continues to ask for input throughout the process. Jim Skaine, 2215 
Clay Street, commented the previous improvements at Rownd Street are working at this 
intersection and he would like to see signalized intersections rather than roundabouts.  

The Mayor introduced the third item on the agenda Middle Cedar Watershed Plan 
Update.  David Sturch Planner III introduced tonight’s speakers, Larry Weber from 

25



University of Iowa Hydroscience and Engineering Department and Pat Conrad from 
Emmons and Olivier Resources.  Mr. Weber stated in 2010 the Watershed 
Management Authorities was created, which is a cooperative effort for cities, counties, 
Soil and Water Conservation Districts and other stakeholders to work together.  He 
further explained in 2016 the Middle Cedar Watershed Management Authority was 
formed and awarded $8.4 million of a $1 billion HUD Disaster Resilience Grant, to help 
reduce flooding and advancing water quality.  Mr. Weber explained the grant is a 90/10 
cost sharing grant.   Mr. Conrad continued to explain the watershed management 
planning phases: issue identification; establishment of goals; and implementation of the 
plan.  He stated they will look at health risks and recreation impairments.  He explained 
open houses were held for public input.  Mr. Conrad reviewed estimated flood benefits 
to the Middle Cedar Watershed area if practices are put into place.  He reviewed the 
next steps are to finalize the plan and have the council adopt it in the spring 2019.  He 
stated the Iowa Watershed Approach sunsets in 2020.  Mayor Brown opened it up for 
discussion.  Sherman Lundy from Iowa Soil and Water Conservation District 
commented on the Dry Run Creek project and permeable alley projects of the City.  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Daryl Kruse 
motioned to approve the bills and payroll as presented and David Wieland seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:32 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

26



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: January 2, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Road Traffic Study: Receive & Adopt 
  Project No. SY-000-3158 
 
In May 2018, the City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the Greenhill Road Traffic Study.  The purpose of this study was to 
evaluate the current and future traffic demands for all modes of transportation in the 
Greenhill Road corridor from Hudson Road to Cedar Heights Drive in order to develop 
short and long-range plans for functional lane needs, intersection improvements, and 
pedestrian/bicycle needs. Other areas of focus were future traffic demand changes due 
to new land use development, complete streets considerations, and appropriate traffic 
control for intersections such as traffic signalization or roundabouts. 
 
The process involved three public information meetings, several direct mailings to 
property owners in advance of meetings, posting information from each meeting on the 
City’s website and a presentation at a Committee of the Whole meeting.  Included with 
the December 17, 2018 Committee of the Whole packet materials were the traffic study 
and appendix items (A-D), the 12/17/18 presentation, written comments staff received 
on or before December 12, 2018, and a memo from the City Engineer regarding 
discussion at the South Main and Greenhill Corridor Neighborhood Association meeting 
on December 10, 2018.  These items can be referenced in that packet.  Attached are 
additional written comments staff has received as of January 2, 2019.  Two have been 
received. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends receiving and adopting the 
Greenhill Road Traffic Study.  The information within the study will then be used for 
planning purposes both in design of projects as well as future Capital Improvement 
Plans.  Design will include more detailed analysis on access, geometry, utilities, and the 
like. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
Attachments: Public comments received since 12/17/18 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

27



28



29



30



31



32



Martin Jacobs 

Patricia Jacobs 

125 Balboa Ave 

Cedar Falls 

December 31st, 2018 

 

The Mayor and City Council of Cedar Falls 

RE: - Greenhill Rd and South Main Rd Intersection Improvements 

As residents of Balboa Ave with a property backing up on Greenhill Road and the third house from South 

Main Rd, we would like to express our preference regarding the upgrade. 

We whole heartedly support the consultant’s recommendation that this intersection should be a 

Roundabout for the following reasons: 

- A Roundabout will be able to keep up with traffic increase over the next 30 years 

- The current changes to the signalized intersection, which will be carried forward in the alternate 

design, have led to a significant increase in wait time, noise and pollution at the traffic lights (in 

all directions). 

- We are subjected to heavy vehicles idling for many minutes at the intersection and loud music 

blaring from vehicles at all hours. The continuous flow through a roundabout will diminish these 

problems. The roundabouts on University Ave are a perfect example of low stress continuous 

traffic flow. 

- The increased traffic from the new Fareway Store will create long lines on South Main with the 

signalized option. This will make it difficult for residents using Balboa Ave to exit onto South 

Main and turn left. I am sure that the Emergency Vehicles leaving the Public Safety Building will 

be hampered by this traffic backup. 

- With the continuous flow around the Roundabout these issues will not occur. 

 

Kind Regards 

Martin and Patricia Jacobs 

 

 

 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  January 2, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer & outdoor service 
- renewal. 

b) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Special Class C liquor - 
renewal. 

c) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

e) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & 
outdoor service - new. 

108



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  January 2, 2019 

Re:  Outdoor Service 

Name of Applicant: 

Shri Siddhipriya, Inc 
DBA: Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center 
7400 Hudson Road  
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

The above noted applicant has requested an outdoor service area for the establishment.  
As allowed under Section 5-81 of the Code of Ordinances, the applicant has requested 
exemptions from the requirements of Section 5-80(2) prohibiting an outdoor service area 
in the front of the licensed premise, Section 5-80(3) requiring solid screening and a fence 
of not less than five feet, Section 5-80(4) requiring an outdoor service area only being 
accessible from the licenses premises which it adjoins and Section 5-80(9) prohibiting 
amplified sound equipment and restricting signage.  Please find a copy of the request 
attached.  Due to the location and probable crowd type, I don’t foresee public safety 
concerns with the exemptions and recommend approval of the outdoor service area as 
requested. 

The applicant must obtain all necessary permits prior to construction and the area must 
be approved by the building official for occupancy/use.  

109



From: Atul Patel 

Sent: Wednesday, December 12, 2018 10:34 PM 

To: Mandy Thurm 

Subject: Liquor License Holiday Inn & Suites/ Event Center 

Mandy, 

As discussed prior this week, attached are the requested documents detailing the sq. footage, 

seating, bathrooms, etc. 

If there is any information needed in addition to what is attached or to be clarified please reach 

out anytime. 

Outside Service Areas: 

 Also note that we are going to have floating bars that can be used inside and/ or outside on our 

own patios depends on the events needs help outside on one of the four patios. 

    -There are 4 - patios that  are large enough to host events from 50 - 250 people each... 

    - The outside events will need to be supported with use of outside speakers/music/video and 

liquor services. Success of the project depends on meeting these needs.  

   -  Attached is the landscape plan showing landscape details surrounding all courtyards 

   - There is NO property surrounding / abutting within 150 ft of all 4 courtyards owned by 

others.   

    - REQUESTING EXEMPTION FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 5-80 (2), (3), (4) AND (9). 

Please advise on the process and where to find an application for approval for use of outdoor 

services to place formal request..  

Also, if the need to appeal any requirements arises please let me now ASAP as this is entire 

project is geared toward hosting events and its success relies heavily on the option to host 

outdoor events and liquor is a major component.  

Let me know when you get a chance to review this so I can move forward with the next steps in 

attaining my license.  

 

Best, 

ATUL PATEL  
Chief Door Opener 

Open Door Hospitality 

110



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Financials Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: January 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Waterloo Courier Advertising Agreement Renewal 

 
Attached is an Advertising Agreement renewal for your review and approval that will 
continue to minimize the amount of advertising dollars the City spends for recruitment 
with the Waterloo Courier.   
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 268-5105 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
Attachment 
        
 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations & Programs 

 DATE: December 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Pettersen Plaza Renovation 

 
 As City Council is aware, Friends of Pettersen Plaza (FPP), and the College Hill 
Partnership (CHP) have been meeting to discuss possible improvements to Pettersen 
Plaza near the intersection of College and 21st Streets. This area was constructed when 
College Street was improved from 20th to 23rd. Current amenities at the plaza include 
trees, concrete benches, plantings and brick pavers. While the space is currently 
functional, there is interest in providing amenities and features to make the space more 
welcoming and available for small groups to hold events.  

Pettersen Plaza is not part of the park system but is maintained as a public 
space by the Public Works and Parks Division. At the August 6, 2018 meeting, the City 
Council approved hiring a consultant to develop conceptual plans for possible 
improvements to the plaza. Several concepts were developed and after meeting with 
the FPP and CHP, the attached concept was approved. This item was placed on the 
December 13, 2018 Park and Rec. Commission agenda. At their meeting, the 
commission approved proceeding with this concept. 

The project may be split into separate phases depending on fundraising. At this 
time, the funding for the project will be achieved through private donations and grants. 
Volunteers and city staff may take part in in certain parts of the project. At this time, no 
city funds are programmed for the project. 

The Department of Municipal Operations & Programs recommends the City 
Council approve authorizing pursuit of the attached concept. This will allow fundraising 
for the project to begin. Please let me know if you have any questions or comments 
regarding this topic. 

121



122



P
e

tt
e

rs
e

n
 P

la
za

 
C

o
n

c
e

p
t 

A
C

e
d

a
r 

F
a

lls
, 

Io
w

a
 

123



P
e

tt
e

rs
e

n
 P

la
za

 
C

o
n

c
e

p
t 

A
C

e
d

a
r 

F
a

lls
, 

Io
w

a
 

124



Pettersen Plaza Cost Estimate - Concept "A" 12/18/2018

Carousel Seating with umbrella Steel Cloth

Six (6) $42,640 $31,320 (alt)

Landscaping

Demo $2,000 $2,000

19 - 1" Whitespire Birch $2,600 $2,600

400 - Daylilly $3,000 $3,000

Install, Misc. $3,500 $3,500

Misc.

Trash Receptacles (3) $3,000 $3,000

Kiosk Update * $1,000 $1,000

Sculpture Pad Structures (3)* $9,000 $9,000

Total $66,740 $55,420

* Estimate only, waiting for more 

solid numbers from our suppliers

125



CEDAR FALLS PARK & RECREATION COMMISSION 
  110 E. 13th Street     Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 
 

 
 

 
PARK AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

Minutes 
December 13, 2018 

 
I.  Meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Leslie Nixon. 

 
II.  Roll Call 

 
Present:  Blanchard, Nixon, Stalnaker, Struck, Mattfeld 
Absent: Lilly, Bowman 
Staff:  Ripplinger, Verink, Frost 

 
III. Introduction of Guests/New Commission Members 
 

• Welcomed Mike Butler and Sid Morris with the Gold Star Family Monument Project and Ben 
Rowe of 933 Grand Blvd, CF 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes:  November 8, 2018 
 

• Motion by Mattfeld 2nd by Blanchard to approve the minutes.  Approved 5-0. 
 

V. Correspondence 
 

• None 
 

VI. Agenda Revisions and Public Forum  
 

• None 
 

VII. Commission Feedback – Questions, Comments 
 

• None 
 

VIII. Unfinished Business 
 

A. Snow Removal On Trails 
 

• Ripplinger addressed the questions regarding snow removal on trails and provided maps 
showing where snow is currently removed. There will be snow removal on the new trail 
constructed with the new University Avenue project.  Roger White of the Bike Advisory 
Committee requested the city consider removing snow in a loop from University to South 
Main to Cedar Heights and Greenhill Road back to South Main.  This request is under 
review by staff.  

• Mattfeld questioned who cleans the snow in the Western Home Communities.  Staff 
responded that the City maintains the City streets and the residents maintain their personal 
sidewalks. 

 
 

 

126



 
 B.  Ice Rink/Skating Area 

 

• The boards are up and are waiting for the cold weather to set in at Gateway Park.  Staff is 
going to remove snow from a portion of Mullen’s Pond in Washington Park as a test to see 
how that location will work.  Staff will keep an eye out for other locations that may possibly 
work.  

 
 C.  Gold Star Family Memorial Monument 
 

• Mike Butler and Sid Morris were present to talk about two possible locations for the Gold 
Star Family Memorial Monument (GSFMM).  Their group would like to see Alternate B on 
the north side of E 14th Street used as it is more visible.  The commission encouraged 
landscaping to be placed as a backdrop to the memorial. There is parking on the north side 
of the street which would make access to the monument easier; however there would be no 
parking directly in front of the monument so the monument would remain visible.  They felt 
that Alternate A on the South side of E 14th Street was too close to the Freedom Rock. 
While it already has sidewalks and a natural green backdrop for the monument, it is not very 
visible to the public. Ripplinger indicated that if Alternate B is preferred the total cost for the 
project would increase due to the need for a public sidewalk, onsite grading, landscaping 
and a possible retaining wall. 

• Mattfeld posed the question regarding a special place to honor missing POW from the area.  
Ripplinger responded that would be a possible future project. 

• Staff will provide a cost estimate to locate the GSFMM in alternate B location. 

• Motion by Mattfeld to recommend Commission support for Alternate B location.  Second by 
Struck.  Approved 5-0. 
             

 D.  Pettersen Plaza 
 

• Plans drawn up by Ritland & Kuiper for the project were shared by staff.  The College Hill 
planning committee is comfortable with these new plans which were pared down to lower 
costs.  They are looking at tables with canopies that may work in this area instead of a large 
shade structure.  At this time the area has three linden trees and some landscaping.  These 
would be removed and new trees and low perennials installed. Existing plant material would 
be salvaged. 

• Motion by Mattfeld 2nd by Blanchard to endorse the recommendation to support this project.  
Approved 5-0. 

 
IX.       New Business 
 

A.  Proposed Rec Fees 
 

• New Rec fee recommendation was presented by Verink.  Verink noted that the main fee 
change was already discussed at the November meeting.  Other than membership fees the 
remainder of fee increases were to cover costs of the programs and to provide better 
recordkeeping who is using the facility. 

• Mattfeld made a motion to accept the fee changes and send on to City Council.  2nd by 
Struck.  Approved 5-0. 

 
B.   2018 Golf Numbers 
 

• The 2018 golf numbers were shared with the commission from John Bermel.  Numbers were 
down from last year however the weather did not cooperate in the spring or fall.  Ripplinger 
reported that the Waverly course numbers were also down. 

• Bermel has paid his obligations required in his contract with the City. 
 

127



C.   Park Signs 
 

• A mock-up of the new City signs were received from Signs by Tomorrow.  Struck liked the 
consistency of the signs throughout the City.  Materials are aluminum signs supported by 
PVC posts.  Very easy to repair if needed.  Mattfeld wondered about adding park hours.  
Ripplinger responded that they could possibly be added to bottom of sign so they would be 
easy to replace if there are changes.  Rowe questioned the height of the signs and the 
answer was that it may vary from park to park depending on location of sign.  First sign 
installations will be in 2019 with additional signs installed over the next two fiscal years.  

 
X. Reports 
 

A. Recreation 
 

• Adult Sport Leagues ongoing 

• Youth basketball and tumbling completed for the fall 

• Youth basketball starting up again in January 

• RFP being prepared by staff for Rec needs 

• Falls ordering for the summer of 2019 – chairs, tubes, chemicals 

• Five new front desk staff in training 

• Pfeiffer dugout and fencing redone 

• Pickleball 101 classes went well – 16 new attending 
 
B. PW/Park/Director 
 

• Cemetery trees 

• Lincoln Street tree tube repairs 

• OSHA training for staff 

• Place to Play restroom under construction 

• Veterans Park sign at 14th St and Waterloo Rd. underway 

• EAB removal going well 

• Ice Rink set up at Gateway 

• Sweeping & clearing trails while no snow 

• Memorial tree planted in Pfeiffer Park for Class of 1977 

• Plaque installation 
 

 

XI. Agenda Items - Next Meeting 
 

• Ice Skating – Mullen’s Pond 

• Gold Star Family Memorial - Update 
 
XII. Next Meeting: 

• January 10, 2019 4:30 p.m., Cedar Falls Recreation Center 
 
XIII. Meeting was adjourned at 5:32 pm by Leslie Nixon Chair 
             
 

128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 2nd, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. ST-105-3094 
  Final Out 
 
The 2018 Permeable Alley Project is complete and ready for final acceptance. The 
project installed a permeable pavement alley to treat stormwater runoff from adjacent 
paved surfaces. The project was under contract with Benton’s Sand & Gravel of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. Attached you will find the following final documents: 
 

- Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
- Copy of Maintenance Bond, Benton’s Sand & Gravel 

 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with City Clerk: 
 

Benton’s Sand & Gravel Suppliers: 
BMC Aggregates L.C. 
Utility Equipment Co. 
 
 

Benton’s Sand & Gravel Subcontractors: 
Service Signing 
Mike Dolan Concrete 
Matthias Landscaping 
 

 
This project was primarily funded by the Storm Water Fund and Street Construction 
Fund. 
 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
                                                               1/2/2019     
        Matthew Tolan   Date 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 3, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9 
  Project No. SW-000-3113 
  Presentation of Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor 
 
The 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 9 is completed and ready for 
assessment. The project repaired deficient sidewalk adjacent to 79 private properties for 
a total assessment cost of $33,899.18.  
 
In 2016, approximately 263 notices were sent out for defective or missing sidewalk. The 
notices informed the property owners of their responsibility to repair the adjacent 
sidewalk. If the property owners didn’t repair the sidewalk, the City would repair the 
sidewalk and assess the property. Seventy percent of the property owners notified 
repaired the defective or missing sidewalk, and thirty percent of the property owners 
notified did not repair the defective or missing sidewalk.  The average cost of defective 
sidewalk is $429.10 with the highest cost at approximately $2,229.41.  
 
Attached please find the Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 
2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 9.  
 
I recommend that the City Council approve and accept the Final Statement of 
Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 
9. 
 
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 
 

158



Address Item No. 1 Unit Price Extended Item No. 2 Unit Price Extended Item No. 3 Unit Price Extended Item No. 4 Unit Price Extended Item No. 5 Unit Price Extended Item No. 6 Unit Price Extended Item No. 7 Unit Price Extended Item No. 8 Unit Price Extended Total Cost of Replacement

Property Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Code or Legal Description Removal of price Sidewalk price Sidewalk price Topsoil price Seeding price Curb Stop price Granular price Traffic Control price or Installation

Location Sidewalk (S.F.) Replacement 4" Replacement 6" (C.Y.) (S.F.) (EACH) Backfill (L.S.)

(S.F.) (S.F.) (Tons)

DS Rentals LLC PO Box 128 Cedar Falls IA 50613 1638 Waterloo Road 8914-13-227-010 25.10 $2.25 $56.48 25.10 $5.25 $131.78 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.15 $75.00 $11.25 11.80 $1.50 $17.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $305.81

Marvin Ihnen 1616 East Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1616 East Street 8914-13-228-016 20.00 $2.25 $45.00 20.00 $5.25 $105.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $258.10

Shelly Gates 1791 310th Street Rowley IA 50613 1623 Scoggin Street 8914-13-228-009 48.00 $2.25 $108.00 48.00 $5.25 $252.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.19 $75.00 $14.25 15.10 $1.50 $22.65 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $485.51

Deanna Wheeler 8037 Acker Road Waterloo IA 50701 821 Grand Boulevard 8914-13-229-004 82.50 $2.25 $185.63 60.50 $5.25 $317.63 22.00 $6.50 $143.00 0.30 $75.00 $22.50 24.20 $1.50 $36.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $793.66

Jeffrey Taylor 1607 Schreiber Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1607 Schreiber Street 8914-13-229-005 20.00 $2.25 $45.00 20.00 $5.25 $105.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $258.11

Barbara Morrison Trust 1612 Schreiber Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1612 Schreiber Street 8913-18-151-014 24.50 $2.25 $55.13 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 24.50 $6.50 $159.25 0.04 $75.00 $3.00 3.00 $1.50 $4.50 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $310.49

Cathy Wigant 909 Grand Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 909 Grand Boulevard 8913-18-151-002 27.00 $2.25 $60.75 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 27.00 $6.50 $175.50 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $324.86

Dana Roberts 1708 Schreiber Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1708 Schreiber Street 8913-18-153-018 20.50 $2.25 $46.13 20.50 $5.25 $107.63 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.20 $1.50 $12.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $262.15

Scott Bakula 1022 Denver Street Waterloo IA 50702 1722 Schreiber Street 8913-18-153-021 23.50 $2.25 $52.88 23.50 $5.25 $123.38 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.12 $75.00 $9.00 9.40 $1.50 $14.10 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $287.95

Timothy Kramer 1620 Birch Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1620 Birch Street 8913-18-152-001 85.50 $2.25 $192.38 85.50 $5.25 $448.88 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.42 $75.00 $31.50 34.20 $1.50 $51.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $812.66

Andrew Shroll 930 Newman Avenue Cedar Falls IA 50613 930 Newman Avenue 8913-18-152-006 65.50 $2.25 $147.38 44.50 $5.25 $233.63 21.00 $6.50 $136.50 0.22 $75.00 $16.50 17.80 $1.50 $26.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $649.31

Connie Smith 929 Newman Avenue Cedar Falls IA 50613 929 Newman Avenue 8913-18-154-001 248.00 $2.25 $558.00 173.00 $5.25 $908.25 75.00 $6.50 $487.50 0.95 $75.00 $71.25 77.20 $1.50 $115.80 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $2,229.41

Blake Hibben 1715 Birch Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1715 Birch Street 8913-18-153-004 65.00 $2.25 $146.25 45.00 $5.25 $236.25 20.00 $6.50 $130.00 0.22 $75.00 $16.50 18.00 $1.50 $27.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $644.61

Eric Lins 407 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 1725 Birch Street 8913-18-153-005 25.00 $2.25 $56.25 25.00 $5.25 $131.25 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.12 $75.00 $9.00 10.00 $1.50 $15.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $300.11

Seth Modderman 1631 Gibson Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 1631 Gibson Street 8913-18-152-004 67.50 $2.25 $151.88 41.50 $5.25 $217.88 26.00 $6.50 $169.00 0.21 $75.00 $15.75 16.60 $1.50 $24.90 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $668.01

Kel Mar LC 619 East 19th Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 623 East 18th Street 8914-13-279-001 57.70 $2.25 $129.83 57.70 $5.25 $302.93 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.24 $75.00 $18.00 19.40 $1.50 $29.10 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $568.46

Vera James LLC 1819 Pinehurst Lane Waterloo IA 50701 907 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-157-010 15.60 $2.25 $35.10 15.60 $5.25 $81.90 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.05 $75.00 $3.75 3.90 $1.50 $5.85 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $215.21

Douglas Stone 1027 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1027 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-158-006 50.00 $2.25 $112.50 50.00 $5.25 $262.50 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.25 $75.00 $18.75 20.00 $1.50 $30.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $512.36

Scott Lyon 15431 Lakeview Drive Clear Lake IA 50428 1524 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-177-017 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 32.00 $5.25 $168.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.00 $1.50 $24.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $367.61

Joel Kasten 1609 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1609 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-179-002 17.20 $2.25 $38.70 17.20 $5.25 $90.30 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 8.60 $1.50 $12.90 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $238.76

Steven Schmitt 56 Glenwood Road Rutland MA 01543 1716 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-256-023 16.40 $2.25 $36.90 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 16.40 $6.50 $106.60 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $232.11

Andrew Abbott 1820 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1820 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-256-016 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

John Galloway 1840 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1838/1840 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-256-026 16.80 $2.25 $37.80 16.80 $5.25 $88.20 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.40 $1.50 $12.60 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $234.70

Thomas Snyder 611 2nd Street S.E. Dyersville IA 52040 1841 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-403-007 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Brandon Pedersen 1904 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1904 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-257-015 17.20 $2.25 $38.70 17.20 $5.25 $90.30 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 8.60 $1.50 $12.90 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $238.76

Chad Schroeder 1928 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1928 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-257-008 16.40 $2.25 $36.90 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 16.40 $6.50 $106.60 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $232.11

Paul Sorenson 1916 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2103 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-429-001 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Mark Rolinger 2118 Grand Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 2118 Grand Boulevard 8913-18-280-016 19.20 $2.25 $43.20 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 19.20 $6.50 $124.80 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $256.61

Ira Fratrik 2233 Grand Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 2233 Grand Boulevard 8913-18-426-011 15.20 $2.25 $34.20 15.20 $5.25 $79.80 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.09 $75.00 $6.75 7.60 $1.50 $11.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $220.76

Fourth and Main LLC 5436 Nordic Drive #D Cedar Falls IA 50613 2309 Grand Boulevard 8913-18-427-001 99.20 $2.25 $223.20 99.20 $5.25 $520.80 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.61 $75.00 $45.75 49.60 $1.50 $74.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $952.76

Justin Robb 2330 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2330 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-427-017 64.40 $2.25 $144.90 64.40 $5.25 $338.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.40 $75.00 $30.00 32.20 $1.50 $48.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $649.91

Todd Thomas 2410 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2410 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-427-015 18.00 $2.25 $40.50 18.00 $5.25 $94.50 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 9.00 $1.50 $13.50 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $245.36

Dennis Adolphs 2436 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2436 Rainbow Drive 8913-18-427-011 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.07 $75.00 $5.25 5.70 $1.50 $8.55 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $222.40

Steven Schmitt 56 Glenwood Road Rutland MA 01543 2504 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-303-012 48.40 $2.25 $108.90 32.00 $5.25 $168.00 16.40 $6.50 $106.60 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.00 $1.50 $24.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $511.11

Sara Laures 2505 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2505 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-351-018 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 16.00 $6.50 $104.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $368.11

Landan Zaputil 2510 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2510 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-303-011 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 32.00 $5.25 $168.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.00 $1.50 $24.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $367.61

Michael Nyman 2523 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2523 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-351-003 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 16.00 $6.50 $104.00 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.60

Laura Sweeney 2403 Cedar Heights Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2403 Cedar Heights Drive 8913-17-352-005 48.40 $2.25 $108.90 48.40 $5.25 $254.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.30 $75.00 $22.50 24.20 $1.50 $36.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $510.41

Jeffrey Sitzmann 2912 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2912 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-328-003 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Dalton Nechanicky 3018 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3018 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-328-012 65.20 $2.25 $146.70 65.20 $5.25 $342.30 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.40 $75.00 $30.00 32.60 $1.50 $48.90 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $656.51

Linda Lein 3030 Rainbow Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3030 Rainbow Drive 8913-17-329-006 16.40 $2.25 $36.90 16.40 $5.25 $86.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.20 $1.50 $12.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $231.41

David Bottke 636 Stanwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2607 Cedar Heights Drive 8913-17-352-016 74.00 $2.25 $166.50 49.00 $5.25 $257.25 25.00 $6.50 $162.50 0.24 $75.00 $18.00 19.60 $1.50 $29.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 1.20 $30.00 $36.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $758.26

Garrett Moses 2619 Cedar Heights Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2619 Cedar Heights Drive 8913-17-352-018 51.00 $2.25 $114.75 26.00 $5.25 $136.50 25.00 $6.50 $162.50 0.13 $75.00 $9.75 10.40 $1.50 $15.60 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.82 $30.00 $24.60 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $552.31

Jacob Martin 2703 Cedar Heights Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2703 Cedar Heights Drive 8913-17-352-020 41.00 $2.25 $92.25 20.00 $5.25 $105.00 21.00 $6.50 $136.50 0.07 $75.00 $5.25 5.80 $1.50 $8.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.66 $30.00 $19.80 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $456.11

Margaret Prophet 2113 California Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2113 California Street 8913-18-430-003 26.80 $2.25 $60.30 26.80 $5.25 $140.70 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.17 $75.00 $12.75 13.40 $1.50 $20.10 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $322.46

James Voorhees 2114 California Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2114 California Street 8913-18-431-001 46.40 $2.25 $104.40 46.40 $5.25 $243.60 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.29 $75.00 $21.75 23.20 $1.50 $34.80 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $493.16

Cedar Valley Real Estate LLC PO Box 92 Cedar Falls IA 50613 2122 California Street 8913-18-431-002 33.20 $2.25 $74.70 15.20 $5.25 $79.80 18.00 $6.50 $117.00 0.09 $75.00 $6.75 7.60 $1.50 $11.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $378.26

Cindy Kruckeberg 2117 California Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2117 California Street 8913-18-430-004 14.00 $2.25 $31.50 14.00 $5.25 $73.50 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.09 $75.00 $6.75 7.00 $1.50 $10.50 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $210.86

Jack Jorgensen 2121 California Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2121 California Street 8913-18-430-005 97.60 $2.25 $219.60 49.60 $5.25 $260.40 48.00 $6.50 $312.00 0.31 $75.00 $23.25 24.80 $1.50 $37.20 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $941.06

Catherine Wood 2134 California Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2134 California Street 8913-18-431-004 35.20 $2.25 $79.20 35.20 $5.25 $184.80 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.22 $75.00 $16.50 17.60 $1.50 $26.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $395.51

Kurt Raymond 2219 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2219 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-476-003 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Loren Duchman 2125 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2125 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-476-025 11.20 $2.25 $25.20 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 11.20 $6.50 $72.80 0.05 $75.00 $3.75 3.80 $1.50 $5.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $196.06

Bryan Foster 2109 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2109 Rownd Street 8913-18-406-010 15.20 $2.25 $34.20 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 15.20 $6.50 $98.80 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $221.60

Donald Brown 2117 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2117 Rownd Street 8913-18-406-011 34.00 $2.25 $76.50 34.00 $5.25 $178.50 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.21 $75.00 $15.75 17.00 $1.50 $25.50 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $384.86

Ashleigh Robinson 2421 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 2421 Rownd Street 8913-18-452.010 67.20 $2.25 $151.20 67.20 $5.25 $352.80 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.41 $75.00 $30.75 33.60 $1.50 $50.40 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $673.76

Emily Kerr 2001 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2001 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-452-007 17.20 $2.25 $38.70 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 17.20 $6.50 $111.80 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $239.10

Roy Moses 1703 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1703 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-451-001 32.40 $2.25 $72.90 32.40 $5.25 $170.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.20 $1.50 $24.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $370.91

David Cusmano 1503 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1503 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-377-003 16.40 $2.25 $36.90 16.40 $5.25 $86.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.20 $1.50 $12.30 1.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $531.41

Shane Pearson 1305 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1305 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-376-002 18.80 $2.25 $42.30 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 18.80 $6.50 $122.20 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $253.11

Elizabeth Melcher 1301 Hawthorne Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1301 Hawthorne Drive 8913-18-376-001 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Cole Kass 2015 Waterloo Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 2015 Waterloo Road 8913-18-301-010 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 32.00 $5.25 $168.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.00 $1.50 $24.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $367.61

William McNellis 317 Winding Ridge Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 2103/2105 Waterloo Road 8913-18-302-009 33.60 $2.25 $75.60 17.20 $5.25 $90.30 16.40 $6.50 $106.60 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 8.60 $1.50 $12.90 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $382.26

CV Properties II LLC PO Box 128 Cedar Falls IA 50613 2130/2132 Waterloo Road 8913-18-304-022 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 32.00 $5.25 $168.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 16.00 $1.50 $24.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $367.61

Ryan Kriener 4407 Donald Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2328 Melrose Drive 8913-18-379-005 18.40 $2.25 $41.40 18.40 $5.25 $96.60 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 9.20 $1.50 $13.80 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $248.65

Parish of St Lukes Church 2410 Melrose Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2410 Melrose Drive 8913-18-379-006 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Suspend Your Disbelief Inc. 1926 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1926 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-428-001 64.40 $2.25 $144.90 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 64.40 $6.50 $418.60 0.00 $75.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.50 $0.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $652.11

Wegmann Real Estate Company 1006 Indigo Street Grundy Center IA 50638 2013 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-427-013 48.40 $2.25 $108.90 16.40 $5.25 $86.10 32.00 $6.50 $208.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.20 $1.50 $12.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $511.41

Laurence Camarata 2117 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2117 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-427-020 17.60 $2.25 $39.60 17.60 $5.25 $92.40 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 8.80 $1.50 $13.20 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $242.06

Blake Overmohle 2215 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2215 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-430-013 48.00 $2.25 $108.00 48.00 $5.25 $252.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.30 $75.00 $22.50 24.00 $1.50 $36.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $507.11

James Bunkofske 1706 Cottage Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 2403/2405 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-478-003 63.60 $2.25 $143.10 63.60 $5.25 $333.90 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.39 $75.00 $29.25 31.80 $1.50 $47.70 1.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $942.56

Benjamin Messerli 2415 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2415 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-478-004 16.40 $2.25 $36.90 16.40 $5.25 $86.10 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.20 $1.50 $12.30 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $231.40

Wesley Sindt 1015 Calumett Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2422 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-479-005 47.60 $2.25 $107.10 31.60 $5.25 $165.90 16.00 $6.50 $104.00 0.20 $75.00 $15.00 15.80 $1.50 $23.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $504.31

Josh Juel 2427 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2427 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-478-006 31.60 $2.25 $71.10 0.00 $5.25 $0.00 31.60 $6.50 $205.40 0.05 $75.00 $3.75 4.40 $1.50 $6.60 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $375.46

Michael Morgan 2504 Valley Park Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2504 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-479-007 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Wegmann Real Estate Company 1006 Indigo Street Grundy Center IA 50638 2510 Valley Park Drive 8914-13-479-008 16.00 $2.25 $36.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.60 $228.10

Nathan Springer 2405 Royal Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2405 Royal Drive 8913-18-353-002 34.00 $2.25 $76.50 18.00 $5.25 $94.50 16.00 $6.50 $104.00 0.11 $75.00 $8.25 9.00 $1.50 $13.50 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $385.36

Edward Fischels 916 East Seerley Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 916 East Seerley Boulevard 8913-18-352-006 15.60 $2.25 $35.10 15.60 $5.25 $81.90 0.00 $6.50 $0.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 7.80 $1.50 $11.70 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $224.81

Carol Patten 917 East Seerley Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 917 East Seerley Boulevard 8913-18-354-003 32.00 $2.25 $72.00 16.00 $5.25 $84.00 16.00 $6.50 $104.00 0.10 $75.00 $7.50 8.00 $1.50 $12.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 0.00 $30.00 $0.00 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $368.11

Stephanie Rowe 933 Grand Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 933 Grand Boulevard 8913-18-152-002 135.00 $2.25 $303.75 110.00 $5.25 $577.50 25.00 $6.50 $162.50 0.54 $75.00 $40.50 44.00 $1.50 $66.00 0.00 $300.00 $0.00 2.18 $30.00 $65.40 0.01266 $7,000.00 $88.61 $1,304.26

Total $33,899.18

2018 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NUMBER SW - 000 - 3113

Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor

159



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 3rd, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk and Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3148 
  Final Out 
 
The 2018 Public Sidewalk and Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project is complete and 
ready for final acceptance. The project involved the repair of deficient sidewalk and 
trails on City property, and also provided sidewalk and trail infills around the City where 
none previously existed. The project was under contract with Feldman Concrete of 
Dyersville, Iowa. Attached you will find the following final documents: 
 

- Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
- Copy of Maintenance Bond, Feldman Concrete 

 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with City Clerk: 
 

Feldman Concrete Supplier & Lien Waiver: 
Croell, Inc. 
 

 
This project was primarily funded by the GO Bonds and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. 
 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2018 Public Sidewalk and Pedestrian Trail 
Improvement Project were completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans 
and specifications. 
 
                                                               1/3/2019     
        Matthew Tolan   Date 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 3rd, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9 
  Project No. SW-000-3113 
  Final Out 
 
The 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project is complete and ready for final acceptance. The 
project repaired deficient sidewalk adjacent to the private property. The project will 
assess the cost of repair to the property owner. 
 
Please find attached the Final Pay Estimate for Feldman Concrete. The lien waiver and 
necessary forms have been received and have been forwarded to the City Clerk’s 
office. Feldman Concrete’s supplier for this project was Croell, Inc.  
 
The 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 8 has been completed in reasonable 
compliance with the project plans and specifications. I recommend that the City Council 
approve and accept the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 9. 
 
 
                                                               1/3/2019     
        Matthew Tolan   Date 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: January 2, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

73 1
st
 Street Wash Partners, Inc. 1408 W. 1

st
 Street Fee 

Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 

176



Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1

st
 Street 

reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



Ol
ive

 St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rvElm St

Pa
rk

Dr

Edgewood St

W 3rd St

Linda Dr

Theimer St

W 2nd St

W 1st St

Pine St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Fo
rre

st 
Rd

W 3rd St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ida St

Pe
ar

l S
t

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Iow
a S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEll enS t

S Park Rd

Edgewood St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Ba
ke

r D
r

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Crescent Dr

Center St

75 69
68

67
72 66 6571 64 63 62

61
60

59 58
57 56

55
54

52
51

50 49 48 47 46

45
4144

43

252 3 4 5 7 8 299 30 31
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19 20
21

22
23 24

42

28

76 74 70
53

5 6 26

1

77

27

73

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Condemnation

193



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8600 

Fax: 319-273-8610 

www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: January 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Confluence, Inc. 
 
The Department of Community Development issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
master planning services for 157 acres of land that the City owns along the south side 
of W. Ridgeway Avenue, just east and west of Hudson Road (known as the Gibson 
Properties). This master planning service would include the creation of a master 
development plan for the property, along with a market analysis to determine what the 
anticipated land uses should be expected at that location. The City received thirteen 
(13) proposals from qualified consultants to perform the work described in the RFP.  
 

Staff reviewed each proposal independently based on a number of criteria, such as: 
 Qualification of the firm and key staff 

 Past experience in working on similar projects 

 Technical approach and project understanding 

 Were all components of the Master Plan addressed in the RFP 

 Does the firm have a respectable track record and previous experience in this area 

 
Out of the thirteen submittals, staff interviewed five consulting firms and followed up 
with reference calls on what staff considered to be the top three firms. After reviewing 
the proposals, conducting interviews and contacting references, the interviewing 
committee felt that Confluence, Inc. had the best overall understanding of the scope of 
the project, including the market analysis. Confluence provided example graphics and 
pictures that were very impressive showing other similar master planning projects that 
they have completed in other cities in Iowa. Another item that staff felt was important is 
that Confluence and its sub consultants Howard R. Green (infrastructure, storm water 
and transportation analysis) and Leland Consulting Group (market analysis) have 
worked together on a number of similar projects in the past.  
 
 
 
 

194



The general scope of services outlined in this contract includes the following components: 
 

 Phase I – Project Kick-Off, Research and Analysis 
o Project kick-off meeting with advisory committee 
o Data collection and site and land use analysis 
o Transportation and utilities analysis 
o Market and economic analysis, forecasting and strategic planning 

 Phase II – Master Planning 
o Land use and transportation master plan 
o Natural resources and stormwater management recommendations 
o Preliminary cost opinion for infrastructure improvements 
o Community gateway recommendations 
o Absorption/development build-out projections and targeted industries and 

retail types 

 Phase III – Final Draft of Master Plan, Presentation and Adoption 
o Final draft of report and executive summary 
o Marketing and promotional information material 
o Final draft report review with advisory committee 
o Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council presentation 

 
Attached in your materials is a proposed schedule to complete the project. For the 
items included in Phase I (listed above), it is proposed to be completed by the end of 
February. For the items included in Phase II, it is proposed to be completed by mid-
May. And for the items included in Phase III, which includes the final deliverables and a 
presentation to the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council, it is proposed to 
be completed by mid-July.  
 
The amount of the contract is $136,920.00. Funds for this project will be provided out of 
the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (TIF). The Department of Community 
Development requests your consideration and approval of the agreement with 
Confluence, Inc. for the master planning services of the 157 acres of City-owned land 
along W. Ridgeway Avenue. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me 
at this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
  

195



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 
Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between Confluence, Inc., 525 17th Street, Des Moines, IA 
50309, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost 
to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor and 
materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 

City Project Number PZ-000-3176  
 

196



quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, require 

from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures equipment, 
materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such equipment, materials 
and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full extent of the 
terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such equipment, and materials 
obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to procuring 
guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all reasonable assistance to 
CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that any 
estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary from the opinions 
of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results 
of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised February 17, 2015 consisting of 12 pages, 
which are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set 
out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
 

197



 
 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Total compensation is a not to exceed a fee of one hundred thirty six thousand nine hundred and 

twenty dollars ($136,920.00). 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may 
be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a non-monetary 
default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the termination in accordance 
with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of 
service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities. 
Any other use or reuse of original or altered files shall be at CLIENT’s sole risk without liability 
or legal exposure to CONSULTANT and CLIENT agrees to release, defend and hold 
CONSULTANT harmless from and against all claims or suits asserted against 
CONSULTANT in the event such documents are used for a purpose different than originally 
prepared even though such claims or suits may be based on allegations of negligence by 
CONSULTANT. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or 
depriving CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry 
out other projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are 
similar to the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different than 

those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no warranty as to 
the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of the potential 
degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between the sealed 
original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
 

198



IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in connection 
with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of such contractors; 
or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall not have the 
right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In 
no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the construction 
work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under contracts with 
CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible 
for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility and/or 
transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of such 
waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s obligations or 
responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required forms relating to 
regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall 
notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be submitted 
for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or 
any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute to mediation can 

199



be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT 
and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required 
before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation 
either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and 
CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the 
payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or communications 
heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be changed, modified, or 
amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of any conflict between 
this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C 
shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved by 

CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and CONSULTANT 

and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its exhibits 
limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:     Chris Shires             
   
 
Title:  Title:    Principal                           
 
 
Date:  Date: 12/10/2018  

200



Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

 

 
 

                                                Exhibit A   
 

Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number PZ-000-3176 
 

12/20/18 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
*** This document outlines the scope of services specific for the Gibson Property Master Planning Project. 
The term “CONSULTANT” as used in this document shall be defined as the design consultant 
(Confluence, Inc.) and all subconsultants that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under 
contract, hereinafter, the “CITY”. 

  
A.  Project Description 

The Consultant will assist the City of Cedar Falls in developing a Master Plan for the Gibson Property 
near the intersection of Hudson Road and Highway 20. The Consultant will provide a marketing study, 
and site analysis to inform the master planning process.  Engineering, infrastructure planning, master 
planning, and stormwater recommendations for the project area 
will be developed by the Consultant.  Detailed color graphic 2D and 3D renderings will be provided 
along with an interactive 3D model, preliminary cost opinion, and marketing material. 

 
A series of project management and Technical Advisory Team meetings will be scheduled to provide 
the City information and updates on the status of the design process and to receive comments and 
direction. No public open house will be included during the process. Upon completion of the project, 
the Consultant will present the proposed final master plan and recommendations to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council for approval. 

 
B.  General Scope of Work 

The work includes, but is not limited to: 
 

PHASE 1 – PROJECT KICK-OFF RESEARCH + ANALYSIS (approximately 2 months) 
•    Project Kick-Off Meeting with Advisory Committee (Staff Technical Advisory Committee 

Meeting #1) 
o This meeting includes Staff from the Consultant for a one day visit to the site and to 

facilitate a meeting with the Staff Technical Advisory Committee.  During that time, the 
Consultant will clarify our roles and responsibilities, identify project contacts and 
communication protocols, and verify the proposed schedule of work with confirmed dates 
for key project milestones and deliverables.  A key component of this meeting will be 
reviewing and exploring the City’s current priorities, goals, and vision for the master plan 
project.  A list of priorities will be refined to serve as guiding principles during the master 
planning phase. 

 
•    Data Collection and Site and Land Use Analysis 

o Consultant will coordinate with City staff to obtain any relevant base and land use data 
currently available in electronic format.  Consultant will analyze the information to identify 
potential issues and opportunities that the site and proposed design presents.  Elements 
to be considered, include but are not limited to

201



Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

 

 
wayfinding, viewsheds, surrounding land use, topography, drainage, floodplains, and 
creek hydrology. 

 
•    Transportation and Utilities Analysis 

o Existing utility information will be solicited from the existing utility companies serving 
the area. 

o Consultant will research and review reports and layouts of existing transportation, water, 
sanitary, storm, and utility assets.   The Consultant will prepare a transportation and utility 
evaluation that identifies potential issues and opportunities for the proposed master plan. 
Elements to be considered include but are not limited to access, pedestrian, bicycle, and 
vehicular circulation, future Hudson Rd. Hwy. 20 interchange improvements, and utilities. 

 
•    Market and Economic Analysis, Forecasting and Strategic Planning 

o Consultant will analyze supply and demand factors to produce demand/capture 
estimates attainable by developing the subject property, with a primary focus on 
commercial land uses, such as office, technology-related businesses, retail, light 
manufacturing, and any others that are deemed attainable. 

o These estimates will inform the development program and market strategy 
recommendations delivered in Phase II. 

o Both the Phase I analysis and Phase II recommendations will reflect special 
consideration of economic development strategy and refinement of industry targeting 
goals. 

 
•    Analysis Review Meeting with Advisory Committee (Staff Technical Advisory Committee 

Meeting #2) 
o A comprehensive Existing Conditions Summary and Marketing Study and Economic 

Development Site Strategy will be presented at this meeting and will include staff from 
the Consultant. 

 
Phase 1 Deliverables 
     Technical Memo on Industry targeting and economic development site strategy 
     Existing conditions evaluation summary 
 Preliminary Market Analysis Report 

 
PHASE 2 – MASTER PLANNING (approximately 2 months) 
•    Land Use and Transportation Master Plan 

o 2D conceptual color Master Plan with building and parking footprints, open space areas, 
lot and street layouts, multimodal transportation, traffic and pedestrian circulation, 
including separated trails and roundabout intersections at W. Ridgeway Avenue and 
open space areas; 

o  Infrastructure plans to 50% construction document level: 
o  Two 3D Color renderings; 
o  Interactive 3D Model/flythrough that illustrates master plan development 

framework including street corridors, parking, buildings, open space, street trees and 
other basic site elements shown in moderate detail. 

 
•    Natural Resources and Stormwater Management Recommendations 

o 2D concept illustrating stormwater management opportunities and solutions for Dry 
Run Creek Greenway including stream rehabilitation and permanent water features as 
well as recommendations for remainder of development. Consultant will prepare 
preliminary calculations for run-off and stormwater storage with recommendations of best 
management practices. 

202



Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

 

 
 

•    Preliminary Cost Opinion for infrastructure improvements. 
o  Planning level cost estimate for phasing and budgeting purposes. 

 
•    Community Gateway Recommendations 

o Graphic illustration of preliminary wayfinding and gateway elements – including design 
and location. 

 
•    Absorption/Development Build-Out Projections and Targeted Industries and Retail Types 

o Presentation of the master plan’s anticipated targeted industries and build-out 
projections. 

 
• Draft Plan Advisory Committee Meeting Review Session (Staff Technical Advisory Committee 

Meeting #3) 
o  Draft Master Plan overview meeting to include staff from the Consultant. 

 
Phase 2 Deliverables 
 Draft Master Plan Report with color master plan and two-color 3D graphic illustrations 
     Interactive 3D model 
     Stormwater Management Recommendations 
     Build-out projections 
     Preliminary Cost Opinion 

 
PHASE 3 – FINAL DRAFT MASTER PLAN HEARINGS + ADOPTION (approximately 2 months) 
•    Final Draft Report and Executive Summary 

o Updated Master plan report, illustrations and 3D model based on City input and 
direction. 

 
•    Marketing and Promotional Information Material 

o Marketing brochure with color plan view and 3D graphic images. City to assist with 
marketing message and text. 

 
•    Final Draft Report Review with the Advisory Committee (Staff Technical Advisory 

Committee Meeting #4) 
 

• Planning and Zoning Presentation - overview of final masterplan.  This includes staff from the 
Consultant. Meeting date shall be arranged with City Project Manager after review and approval 
of the final draft report and materials by the Advisory Committee.  

 
•    City Council Presentation - overview of final masterplan.   This includes staff from the 

Consultant. 
 

Phase 3 Deliverables 
     Final Master Plan Report with associated 2D and 3D graphics (Electronic copy and 

20 Hard copies) 
     Marketing and Promotional Information Brochure 
     Two (2) 3D renderings of the master plan 
 Plan and profile sheets of the proposed roadway corridors and underground public utilities 

representing a 50% design level 
 Final interactive 3D Model 

203



Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

 

 
 

C.  Project Team 
 

Consultant                                                             
 
Confluence Inc.  
  Chris Shires, AICP, Principal-in-

Charge, responsible for project 
oversight, the project deliverables, 
and attending all key meetings 
 

 Brenda Nelson, PLA, Project 
Manager and primary point of contact 
with the City, responsible for all 
aspects of the site analysis and 
master planning process 
 

  Jane Reasoner, Planner, providing 
GIS mapping, graphics, and 
demographic and economic analysis 
support 

Scope 
 
Confluence is the Project Manager and lead 
designer responsible for coordination with 
City staff and subconsultants, site and land 
use analysis and planning, master plan 
design, assistance with preliminary cost 
opinion, and development of 2D plan and 3D 
graphics. 
 
Confluence is also the lead presenter for the 
Technical Advisory Meetings, Planning and 
Zoning Commission meetings and City 
Council presentations.  
 
  
 

 
HR Green Inc.  
 Jim Halverson, technical advisor 

 
 Aaron Granquist, PE, transportation 

engineering and civil infrastructure 
task leader 
 

 Aaron Gwinnup, PE, stormwater 
management task leader  

 
 Lauren O’Neil P.E., water and 

wastewater task leader 
 

 Jeremy Kaemmer, AICP, 
transportation planning 

 
Civil engineering analysis and master plan 
design (utilities, transportation, stormwater 
management), lead for infrastructure plans, 
preliminary cost opinion, and interactive 3D 
model. Assist with master planning, 
development of final report and co-presenter 
at Advisory Committee, Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting and City Council 
meetings. 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Leland Consulting Group Inc. 
 Ted Kamp, Economic development, 

market analysis, and on-site 
presentations  

 
Market and economic development analysis, 
plus market strategy and build-out 
projections. 

 
 

D.  Schedule 
The project is anticipated to take six months following contract execution. The initial project kickoff 
meeting, market study and site analysis is planned for the first two months. The draft master plan will 
be developed during the second two months and during final two months the 
Consultants will finalize the Master Plan report, prepare marketing graphics and present to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. The schedule may be adjusted based on mutual 
agreement between the City and the Consultant or for delays beyond the control of the Consultant.   
The schedule is further dependent on the timely review of project documents by the City and the 
scheduling of public meetings that are out of the control of the Consultant. 

 

204



Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

 

E.   Deliverables 
The scope of services shall be considered to be complete upon delivery of the following items to the 
satisfaction of the City: 

 Technical memo on industry targeting and economic development site strategy 
 Final Market Analysis Report 
 Existing conditions analysis summary 
 Build-out projections 
 Plan and profile sheets of the proposed roadway corridors, underground public 

utilities, representing a 50% design level 
 Storm water management plan – based on the proposed land-use plan, hydrologic 

runoff calculations will be provided along with proposed routing alignments and 
potential locations of storm water management basins. 

 Stream corridor greenway plan – based on the proposed land-use plan, a 2D exhibit 
will be produced showing potential greenway enhancements and locations of 
streambank restoration. 

 Preliminary cost opinion for infrastructure 
 Marketing and promotional information brochure 
 Final Natural Resources and Stormwater Management Recommendations 
 Two (2) 3D renderings of the master plan 
 Final interactive 3D model (moderate level of detail) 
 Final Master Plan Report with associated 2D and 3D graphics (Electronic copy and 

20 Hard copies) 
 

F.   Additional Services 
No additional services are included at this time. The contract may be amended in the future to 
provide services and preparation of preliminary and final platting documents based on the adopted 
Master Plan. Any additional services may be added as extra work by Supplemental Agreement 
when appropriate to the project schedule. 

205



 

Exhibit B 

  08/30/17 
 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
    

 
Gibson Property Master Planning Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number PZ-000-3176 

 

206



 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 
 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 

The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

207



 
  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

208



 
  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Performance and Payment Bonds: The City shall have the right to require 
the Contractor to furnish performance and payment bonds for the full amount of 
the Contract price.  The Contractor shall furnish, by a surety and in a form 
satisfactory to the City, such bonds to the City, prior to the start of Contractor’s 
Work, covering the performance of the Contractor and the payment of all 
obligations arising hereunder.  The Contractor, upon receipt of the bonds and 
invoice from the surety, shall pay for the cost of said bonds. Additional bond 
premium costs due to modifications to the Contract shall be included in the 
modification amount submitted by Contractor, and paid by Contractor.  
 
13. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 

209



 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 
 
 
 
  

210



 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  
 
Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000  
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

211



 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

212



 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

  Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

213



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

(Claims-Made Policy)

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Professional Liability 09/04/18

37885

DPR9930638

201 First Street SE, Suite 700

USA

Aggregate

Per Claim09/04/19

Holmes Murphy & Assoc - CR

XL SPECIALTY INS CO

dbeltz

2,000,000

2,000,000

220 Clay Street

Cedar Rapids, IA 52401

53921651

53921651

1-800-300-0325

Des Moines, IA 50309

09/12/2018

City of Cedar Falls

A

525 17th Street

Confluence, Inc.

214



 CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

09/12/18 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be 
endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A 
statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 
Aon Risk Services, Inc of Florida 
1001 Brickell Bay Drive, Suite #1100 
Miami, FL 33131-4937 

CONTACT
NAME: Aon Risk Services, Inc of Florida 
PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext): 800-743-8130

FAX 
(A/C, No): 800-522-7514

EMAIL 
ADDRESS: ADP.COI.Center@Aon.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A :  New Hampshire Ins Co 23841 
INSURED 
ADP TotalSource CO XXIII, Inc 
10200 Sunset Drive 
Miami, FL 33173 
ALTERNATE EMPLOYER 
Confluence, Inc 
525 17th Street  
Des Moines, IA 50309 

INSURER B :    

INSURER C :    

INSURER D :    

INSURER E :    

INSURER F : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2170741 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. LIMITS SHOWN ARE AS REQUESTED.

INSR 
LTR 

TYPE OF INSURANCE 
ADDL 
INSR 

SUBR 
WVD 

POLICY NUMBER 
POLICY EFF 

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
LIMITS 

  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY    
EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

 
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR 

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 

 
 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 

 
 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 
 POLICY PROJECT LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 
 OTHER  $ 

 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

   
 

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident) $ 

 
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY  

SCHEDULED 
AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

 HIRED  
AUTOS ONLY  

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Per accident) $ 

 
    $ 

 
 UMBRELLA LIAB  OCCUR 

   
EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

 EXCESS LIAB  CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

 DEC  RETENTION $   

A 
 
 
 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

Y / N 

 N / A X 

WC 047014234 IA 
 
 
 

07/01/18 
 
 
 

07/01/19 
 
 
 

X 
PER 
STATUTE  OTH-

ER  

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 2,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 2,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 2,000,000

 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
All worksite employees working for CONFLUENCE, INC, paid under ADP TOTALSOURCE, INC.'s payroll, are covered under the above stated policy.  CONFLUENCE, INC is an alternate employer under this 
policy. 
See attached Certificate Holder Cancellation Notice. 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION IN FAVOR OF CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, ITS DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND VOLUNTEERS WORKING ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AS RESPECTS OF JOB PERFORMED BY CONFLUENCE, INC AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT. 
RE: Master planning services for South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area 
 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

215



WORKERS’ COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY 

 
WC 00 03 13 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

 
This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached effective on the inception date of the policy unless a 
different date is indicated below. 

(The following “attaching clause” need be completed only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.) 
 
This endorsement, effective on 09/12/2018 at 12:01 A.M. standard time, forms a part of Policy No. WC 
047014234 of the New Hampshire Ins Co 
                  

Issued to:  
 

ADP TotalSource CO XXIII, Inc (PEO Company) 
10200 Sunset Drive 
Miami, FL 33173 
Confluence, Inc (Client of PEO Company) 
525 17th Street  
Des Moines, IA 50309                  

 
Premium (if any) $ Included    
  Authorized Representative 
 
 

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not 
enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. This agreement applies only to the 
extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.* 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule. 

 

Schedule 

In favor of: 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, ITS DIRECTORS,  

EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND VOLUNTEERS WORKING ON BEHALF  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA  50613 

 

JOB DESCRIPTION: 

RE: MASTER PLANNING SERVICES FOR SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN RENEWAL AREA  

216



POLICY HOLDER NOTICE 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION NOTICE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
Should this policy be cancelled before the expiration date hereof, the producer will 
endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder named herein, but 
failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the insurer, 
the producer, or the respective agents or representatives of each.   
 

SCHEDULE: 
 
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS AS IDENTIFIED ON THE MOST RECENT QUARTERLY 
SCHEDULE OF CERTIFICATE HOLDERS PROVIDED BY THE INSURED'S BROKER OF 
RECORD TO THE INSURER. 
 
 

217



This endorsement, effective 12:01 a.m., 12/05/2018 forms a part of 

Policy No. DPR9930638 

Issued to Confluence, Inc. 

by XL Specialty Insurance Company. 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Page 1 of 1 12/11/2018 7:10:50 PM

X.L. America, Inc.  All Rights Reserved.
May not be copied without permission.

MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
PROFESSIONAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND NETWORK SECURITY LIABILITY POLICY – ARCHITECTS,
CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS 

It is agreed that, in the event this Policy is cancelled by the Company for any reason, or cancelled by the 
NAMED INSURED, a thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
insurance coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment will be provided to the 
following entity: 

Entity Name and Address: 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached. 

All other terms and conditions of the Policy remain unchanged. 

218



 

 

    
Exhibit C 

  08/30/17 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

 
Gibson Property Master Planning Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number PZ-000-3176 

 

Confluence, Inc.                                     Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Project No. 18283  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

219



 

 

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 

Confluence, Inc.                                     Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Project No. 18283  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

220



 

 

 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

Confluence, Inc.                                     Gibson Property Master Planning Project 
Project No. 18283  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PZ-000-3176 

221



WORK PLAN SCHEDULE
DEC

2018

JAN

2019

FEB

2019

MAR

2019

APRIL

2019

MAY

2019

JUNE

2019

JULY

2019

Selection + Notice to Proceed

Kick-off Meeting with Advisory Committee (Advisory 
Committee Meeting #1)

PHASE 1   RESEARCH + ANALYSIS

Site and Land Use Analysis & Assessment

Transportation and Utilities Analysis

Market and Economic Analysis

Submit/Review Analysis (Advisory Committee Mtg. #2)

PHASE 2   MASTER PLANNING

Master Planning + Recommendations

Preliminary Infrastructure Cost Estimate

Submit Draft Master Plan Report

Draft Plan Advisory Committee Review Session (Advi-
sory Committee Meeting #3)

PHASE 3  FINAL DRAFT + ADOPTION

Final Master Plan Report

Submit Final Report for review

Final Report Review with Advisory Committee (Advisory 
Committee Meeting #4)

Present to Planning and Zoning Commission (July 10th)

City Council Presentation (July 15th)

PROPOSED SCHEDULE
Based upon the scope of services and required deliverables, we propose the following schedule 
for completion of the Cedar Fall Master Planning project. This proposed timeline assumes a 
mid-January Recommendation for Award and receipt of the Notice to Proceed. 

Our team is immediately available to commit the necessary time and resources to your project 
in order to deliver the completed Master Plan within this desired time frame. If selected, we will 
prepare and submit a detailed schedule for completion of the work that more throughly outlines 
meetings and coordination dates. 

LEGEND:  KEY DATES     MEETINGS

RESPONSE TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

GIBSON PROPERTY MASTER PLAN / CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

222



Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

Shawnee
Rd

Technology Pkwy

W Ridgeway Ave

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

ChancellorDr

Le
xin

gto
n

Blv
d

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Capital Way

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Enterprise Dr
Butterfield Rd

Blackhawk Ln

Columbia St
Richmond St

Fa
st 

Ln

Hwy 58

Waterway
Ave

Camden St

Montclair St

Venture Way

No
rd i

c D
r

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

E Ridgeway
Ave

Pr
od

uc
tio

n D
r

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Riders Rd

Hwy 58

Cyber Ln

Commerce Dr

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

Hwy 20Hwy 20

81.24 acres

Master Planning Services RFP
Area Overview

¨
1 " = 1,000 '

Legend
Subject Properties

City Limits
100 Year Floodplain District
500 Year Floodplain District
Floodway District

75.84 acres

223



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: January 3, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Advancement of Funds for the Gibson Property Master Planning 
Services Agreement  

 

Earlier on the agenda, City Council will be asked to approve a $136,920.00  contract 
with Confluence, Inc. for master planning services on 157 acres of City-owned property 
located along W. Ridgeway Avenue. The City intends to use tax increment financing 
(TIF) from the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in order to fund this project, 
however the payment to be made to the Confluence, Inc. would be prior to the City 
having received any tax increment funds from the County within this urban renewal 
area. 
 
Therefore, the City must advance the cost for the payment from another source until tax 
increment funds are received. Staff is recommending that the payment be advanced 
from the City’s Economic Development Fund. The advance would be treated as an 
internal loan, which the Economic Development Fund would then be reimbursed from 
the Tax Increment Fund once the City receives tax increment funds in this area. 
 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council take the 
following action: 
 

1. Resolution authorizing advancement of costs for an Urban Renewal project and 
certification of expenses incurred by the City for payment under Iowa Code 
Section 403.19. 

 
If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum, please contact the 
Community Development Department. 
 
xc:   Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
        Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
        Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

224



 

 

(This Notice to be posted) 

 

 

NOTICE AND CALL OF PUBLIC MEETING 

 

 

Governmental Body:  The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

Date of Meeting:   January 7, 2019. 

 

Time of Meeting:   Seven o'clock P.M. 

 

Place of Meeting:    Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above mentioned governmental body 

will meet at the date, time and place above set out.  The tentative agenda for said meeting is as 

follows: 

 

 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADVANCEMENT OF COSTS FOR 

AN URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT AND CERTIFICATION OF 

EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CITY FOR PAYMENT UNDER 

IOWA CODE SECTION 403.19 

 

Such additional matters as are set forth on the additional _________ page(s) attached hereto.  

                                                                                            (number)     

     

 

 This notice is given at the direction of the Mayor pursuant to Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, 

and the local rules of said governing body. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  

 

 

225



 

- 1 - 

 

 

January 7, 2019 

 

 

 The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in regular session, in the Council 

Chambers, City Hall at seven o'clock P.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor,  

________________  in the chair, and the following named Council Members: 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent:  _______________________________________ 

 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  

226



 

- 2 - 

 

Council Member__________________________ introduced the following Resolution 

entitled “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADVANCEMENT OF COSTS FOR AN URBAN 

RENEWAL PROJECT AND CERTIFICATION OF EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CITY 

FOR PAYMENT UNDER IOWA CODE SECTION 403.19" and moved its adoption.  Council 

Member___________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and 

the vote was,  

 

 

AYES:  ________________________________________  

 

 

             _________________________________________ 

 

 

NAYS:  ________________________________________  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

227



 

- 3 - 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADVANCEMENT OF COSTS FOR AN 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT AND CERTIFICATION OF EXPENSES 

INCURRED BY THE CITY FOR PAYMENT UNDER IOWA CODE SECTION 

403.19 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa has adopted the South Cedar Falls Urban 

Renewal Plan, (the “Plan”) for the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (the "Urban Renewal 

Area") for the purpose of undertaking urban renewal projects, including the project described as 

“Planning, design, studies and associated costs for the development of land within the Urban 

Renewal Area”, (the "Project") within the Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project is located in the Urban Renewal Area; is described on page 7 of 

the Plan; does not exceed the projected Project cost estimate on page 7 of the Plan; and, in the 

judgment of the City Council will further one or more of the objectives of the Plan.  Therefore, 

the Project constitutes a public use and purpose as provided by Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 

403; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City intends to advance costs from the Economic Development Fund to 

pay costs associated with the Project, and thereafter reimburse said fund with tax increment; and 

 

WHEREAS, before approving an urban renewal project for reimbursement with tax 

increment, it is necessary to make certain findings under Chapter 403; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City to certify the amount of funds advanced for 

reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 before December 1, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds to be advanced for the Project is currently estimated at 

$136,920.00. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2926 , there has been established the South 

Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area Tax Increment Revenue Fund (the "Tax Increment Fund"), into 

which all incremental property tax revenues received from the Urban Renewal Area, as 

amended, are deposited.  The Council finds the Project to be an Urban Renewal Project as 

defined in Iowa Code Chapter 403, and further finds that said Project is included in the Plan for 

the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 Section 2. It is hereby directed that the total costs for the Project be advanced from 

time to time from the Economic Development Fund in order to pay the costs of the Project. The 

228



 

- 4 - 

 

advance shall be treated as an internal loan (the "Loan") from the Economic Development Fund 

and the Economic Development Fund shall be reimbursed the total actual Project cost from the 

Tax Increment Fund.  

 

Section 3. All Project costs to be incurred for the Project are approved, to be 

advanced as described in Section 2.  The Project is currently estimated to cost approximately 

$136,920.00.  

 

Section 4. Certification for reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be 

made by the Council on or before December 1, 2020. 

 

ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, this 7
th

 day of January, 2019. 

 

 

____________________________ 

       Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk  

 

229



 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF ________ 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

 I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of_________, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the corporate records of the City 

showing proceedings of the City Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action 

taken by the Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the 

attachment, which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or 

rescinded in any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in 

accordance with a notice of public hearing and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely 

served on each member of the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place 

easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of 

the Council (a copy of the face sheet of the agenda being attached hereto) pursuant to the local 

rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 

notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 

meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 

230



Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

Shawnee
Rd

Technology Pkwy

W Ridgeway Ave

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

ChancellorDr

Le
xin

gto
n

Blv
d

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Capital Way

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Enterprise Dr
Butterfield Rd

Blackhawk Ln

Columbia St
Richmond St

Fa
st 

Ln

Hwy 58

Waterway
Ave

Camden St

Montclair St

Venture Way

No
rd i

c D
r

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

E Ridgeway
Ave

Pr
od

uc
tio

n D
r

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Riders Rd

Hwy 58

Cyber Ln

Commerce Dr

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

Hwy 20Hwy 20

81.24 acres

Master Planning Services RFP
Area Overview

¨
1 " = 1,000 '

Legend
Subject Properties

City Limits
100 Year Floodplain District
500 Year Floodplain District
Floodway District

75.84 acres

231



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
 

    I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2019-2024 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

 

Attached is the required notice for the proposed FY2019-2024 Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP) hearing.   The CIP will be presented at committee on January 7th.  
 

The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 

that the hearing be set for January 21, 2019. 

 
If you have any questions about the CIP or the process, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

232



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE  

FY2019-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM (CIP) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Cedar Falls City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa will conduct a public hearing on the proposed FY2019-2024 Capital 

Improvements Program (CIP) at 7:00 p.m. on the 21st day of January 2019, said 

meeting to be held in the Council Chamber in City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 

Iowa. 

 

Copies of the foregoing described document are on file in the office of the City 

Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa and may be inspected by any persons 

interested.  Written objections to said proposed Capital Improvements Program may be 

filed with the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on or before the date of hearing, 

and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

        CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

       By: JACQUE DANIELSEN, CMC 

        CITY CLERK 

233



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: January 2, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Play to Play Playground Project 
   Project No. PI-185-3156 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the Place to Play Playground Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, January 21, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, January 29, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by January 11, 2019. The Plans and Specifications will be ready 
for distribution to contractors on January 11, 2019 allowing more than two (2) weeks of 
review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the construction of a play area in Greenhill Park that will provide 
recreation opportunities for individuals of all ages who have special needs. The plans 
will include play equipment, safety surfacing, fencing, etc. This project is to be 
completed in August of 2019. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $527,526. The majority of 
the project will be funded with private funds and a Black Hawk County Gaming Grant. 
Other funding sources that will be used may include hotel motel tax and the general 
revenue fun. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community 
Development Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Mark Ripplinger, Director of Municipal Operations 

234



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: January 3, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Street Construction Project 
   Project No. RC-000-3153 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2019 Street Construction Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, January 21, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Tuesday, January 29, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by 
January 11, 2019. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on 
January 11, 2019 allowing more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the construction of fourteen(14) City streets(see attached Exhibit A) 
totaling 2.78 miles. Work will include removal and replacement of the existing pavement, HMA 
overlays, subgrade compaction, storm sewer, subdrain, intake construction and replacement of 
driveway approaches and handicap ramps. Complete streets components were considered in 
the design of each roadway and checklists are on file with the City Engineer. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $4,798,387.18. The majority of the 
project will be funded with the Local Option Sales Tax funds. The project will involve new water 
main on Cedar Heights Drive, Melrose Drive and Franklin Street and will be funded by Cedar 
Falls Utilities. This project will also replace the sanitary sewer main on Lilac Lane and Franklin 
Street that will be funded by Sanitary Sewer Rental Fund. 
 
This project meets the Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2019 by 
using Local Option Sales Tax for our annual Construction program. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
att 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  

235



 

236


	Top
	1. Approval of Minutes
	181217MINUTES.docx

	2. Public Hearing - Budget Amend #1 FY2019
	1 Budget Amend #1 Memo.doc
	2 CedarFalls_budget_amend_1_FY19 PH.pdf

	3. Res for PH - Budget Amendment
	4. Public Hearing - Rezoning, Prairie West II
	1. CC staff Report for Prairie West II Rezoning.docx
	2. ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3.. 5722 Rezoning Exhibit.pdf
	4. Cover Letter.docx
	5_Ordinance Rezoning.docx

	5. Ordinance Rezoning A1 for R1
	6. Appt - V&amp;T
	1-Appt Memo.docx
	2-V &amp;amp; T - Croshier-Sidebotham 12-5-18.pdf

	7. 12/17 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 12 17 18.doc

	8. Greenhill Road Traffic Study: Adopt
	1. Approving Traffic Study Memo 1-7-19.docx
	2. Penny Popp Recd 12-21-18.pdf
	3. Jacobs comments 12-31-18.docx

	9. Departmental Monthly Report - November 2018
	Monthly Report - November 2018.pdf

	10. Liquor 01/07/19
	1-Liquor Beer Memo.doc
	2-Beer-Liquor-OutdoorSvc-ExemptionsHolidayInn.doc
	3-Exemption Request.docx

	11. Waterloo Courier Advertising Agreement
	1 WlooCourierAgreeMemo1-19.doc
	2 Waterloo Courier Ad Agreement 2019-2020.pdf

	12. Agrmt for Massage Therapy
	Massage Agrmt.pdf

	13. Concept for Improvements to Pettersen Plaza
	1_Council_Pettersen_1_7_19.pdf
	2_Pettersen_Plaza_Street_view.pdf
	3_Pettersen Plaza_Concept_Perspective.pdf
	4_Pettersen Plaza_Concept_Plan_View.pdf
	5_P_Plaza_Estimate_12_18_18.pdf
	6_P&amp;amp;R_Minutes_Pettersen.pdf

	14. Approve purchase of lockers, etc.
	Public Safety Lockers, Work Counters, Shelves and Equipment.pdf

	15. 2018 Permeable Alley Final Out
	1. 2018 Permeable Alley Final Out.docx
	2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf
	3. Bond.pdf
	4. Material Certs and Lien Waivers.pdf

	16. 2018 Sidewalk Assessment - Final Statement of Expenditures
	1. 2018 Sidwalk Assessment Project - Final Statement.docx
	2. Breakdown - 2018 Assessment Project.pdf

	17. 2018 Public Sidewalk and Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project - Final Out
	1. 2018 Public Sidewalk and Trail - Final.docx
	2. Final Pay App.pdf
	3. Bonds.pdf
	4. Lein Waiver.pdf

	18. 2018 Sidewalk Assessment - Final Out
	1. 2018 Sidewalk Assessment - Final.docx
	2. Final Pay App.pdf
	3-Bond - 2018 SW Assessment.pdf
	4. Lien Waiver.pdf

	19. W. 1st Street Acquisition
	1.council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx
	2.Signed 73.pdf
	3.73 Temp Easement.pdf
	3.W1stPropAcq190107.pdf

	20. Professional Services Agreement with Confluence, Inc.
	1_City Council Memo for Confluence Consultant Selection 01-07-19.doc
	2_Confluence, Inc. - Profesional Service Agreement with Attachments.pdf
	3_Confluence Master Plan Schedule 01-02-2019.pdf
	4_Property Map.pdf

	21. Advancement of Funds for an Urban Renewal Project
	1_Council Memo 01-07-19.docx
	2_Advance Resolution for Master Planning Contract 01-07-19.docx
	3_Property Map.pdf

	22. Set PH - CIP
	1-CIP hearing notice council.mem.doc
	2-PHNOTICE-CIP.docx

	23. Set PH-Place to Play Plans, etc.
	1. PTP Playground PSE Memo.docx

	24. Set PH-2019 Street Const PS&amp;E
	1. 2019 Recon PSE Memo.docx
	2. Exhibit A.pdf

	25. Bills &amp; Payroll for 1/07 Council agenda
	26. Exec Session - Legal Matters
	Bottom

